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10 LTNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT
)

1 l ' Plaintiff, ) 2:08-cr-0064-RLH-GWF
)

12 VS. ) VIOLATIONS:
)

131 l STEVEN W . GRIM ,M ) l 8 U.S.C. j 1 349 - Conspiracï to Commit
EVE E. MAZZARELLA, ) Bank Fraud, Mail Frau ,d and Wlre Fraud

14 MELISSA R. BEECROFT, ) 1 8 U.S.C. j 1344 - Bank Fraud
CHRISTINA R. THOMPSON, ) 1 8 U.S.C. j2 - Aiding and Abetting

15 AMY R. ORTIZ, and ) 1 8 U.S.C. j l956(h) - Conspiracy to Commit
JYOTHI PANIKKAR, ) Money Laundering

16 a/k/a JOE PANIKKAR, ) l 8 U.S.C. # 1 957 - Engaging in Monetary
. ) Transactions in Property Derived From

171. Defendants. 1 Specified Unlawful ActivityI 
d xssist with26 U .S.C. j 7206(2) - Aid an

1 8. 1 Fraud and False Statem emts

1911 THE GILAND JURY CHARGES THAT:
1 I .

20 INTRODUCTIO N

21 At a1l times relevant to this Indictment:

22 1 . Defendant STEVEN W . GRIM M  was resident agent, president, secretary,

23 I treasurer, and director of Pro Design, Incoporated (çtpro Design''), Premier Design Concepts, Inc.
j '

24.. (ttpremier Design''), and R. E. Property Solutions, Inc.: each of which are Nevada Comorations.

25 2, Defendant EVE E. M AZZARELLA was resident agent, president. secretary,

26 treasurer, and director of Distinctive Real Estate & Investments (:'DREl''), a Nevada Corporation.

! 1

j 'i
l
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1 ' 3. Defendant EVE E. M AZZARELLA was a signor on the bank account of Premier

2 Design.

3 . 4. The defendant STEVEN W . GRIM M  was resident agent and m anager of the

l4 following Limited-laiability Companies registered with the Nevada Secretary of State:

5 ABRow x. LLc AoAvExpoR'r, LLc
; ANTIGRE/N, LLc BFAGIN, LLc
6 BINGRAM , LLc BLABEE, LLc

clqoovER. LLc cl-oucEl-, LLc
7 CROJA .s Li-c CSHEBT .s l-t.c

c'rldoMfsox, LLc DMARK, LLc
8 Dlu AC, LLc DSHEETS, LLc

IDEAN, LLc JELDRE ,D LLc
9 JGARVE .N' LLc JGRE .EN f-l-c

JGRIMM, ùLc KBROO . LLc
10 KJAMES. LLc KTINAGLiA. LLc

Lotp lx .k LLc MTHOM, Ll-t?
l l PALTMA: .N LLc RFAGI .N Lnc

RKSA .M LL,(t sALLluzz .A LLc
121! scoMlk LLc SDKLA Ll-cjI 

. s'rl-luzz k LLc TLIUZJ .A LLc
l3' TMCGUIR .t2 LLC VAMINO .k LLC

VSQIJILLANTE, LLc wDAVEN/ORT, LLc
14

15 5. The defendant STEVEN W . GRIM M was manager of the following Limited-

16 Liability Companies registered with the Nevada Secretary of State:

17 CGARVEY, LLC
DW ALLAC ,E LLC JCORTES, LLC

18 JSTEVEN ,S LLC JW INSLOW , LLC
M W INOW SKI LLC PILDE, LLC

191: RBEUCHAT IILC SSTEP LLC
TvqxcLEvà LLc TvAxöosTsxooRp,unc

20 wpATTERsok,LLc
2 I 6. The defendant STEVEN W . GRIM M  was resident agent of the following Limited-

22 Liability Company registered with the Nevada Secretary of State:
I

23 KLARE ,s Ll-c LEDIAZ, LLc
RID, LLc) select Equities, LLC

24

25 7. Select Equities, LLC was resident agent and manager of the following Limited-

: '
26.1 . Liability Companies registered with the Nevada Sccretary of State:

2
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l Select Equities lnvestments 1, LLC Select Equities Investments 1
.a.1 LLC

Select Equities Investments 111, LLC Select Equities lnvestments lV, LLC
2 Select Equities lnvestments V, LLC Select Equfties lnvestm ents Vl: LLC
: 
. Select Equities Investments VI1, LLC Select Equities lnvestments VIII, LLC

3! . Select Equities lnvestments IX, LLC Select Equities Investments X: LLC
! Select Equities Investments Xl, LLC Select Equities lnvestments XIy LLC
4 Select Equities Investments Xlll, LLC Select Equities Investments XIV, LLC

Select Equities Investm ents XV, LLC Select Equities Investm ents XVI, LLC
5 Select Equities Investments XVII, LLC

6 8. Defendants STEVEN W . GRIM M and EVE E. M AZZARELLA had joint

7 signatory authority over the following bank accounts at Colonial Bank:

8 Account Holder Accotlnt Number
2412 Broadway Ave E., LLC XXXXXX8786

9 ANTIGREE ,N LLC XXXXXX9968
BFAGIN, LLè xxxxxx9984

10 BINGRAM , LLc xxxxxx8158
CHOOVER, LLC XXXXXX4681

I 1 COQUINN, LLC XxxNXX5407
CTHOM PSON, LLc xxxxxx7592

12 DM ARK, LLC XXXXXX9016
DRJA ,c LLc xxxxxx3293

13 JELDRE ,D LLC XXXXXX3301
JGREE ,N LLC xXXxxx8604
JGRIM M  Ltc  xxxxxx48481 4: l
KBROWII, LLC XxXXXX8869

15' KJAM ES, LLC XXXXXX8596
KLARES, LLC XXXXXX3194

16 KTINGLIA, LLC XXXXXX86l2
LEDIA ,z LLc xxxxxx7469

171. LOQUIN ,N LLC XXXXXX7261
. M THOM LLC (:::::::.X2%3335S k !'

1811 RI7AGIN Ll-c xxxxxx9992
Rlo t,Lé xxxxxx3343

19 RKkAM. LL,c xxxxxx3l7:
.. sAl-l-ltlkz .A LLc xxxxxx4855

20 ' soKuA
, 
Lf-ci xxxxxx3l6p

Select Equities Investm ents X ,1 LLC XXXXXX2824
2 I Select Equities lnvestments XV, LLC XXXXXX2857

Select Eqtlities LLC lnvestments XVI, LLC XXXXXX2865
22 SSTEP, LLC XXXXXX3327

STLIUZZA, LLC XXXXXX7584
23 VAM INO ,R LLC XXXXXX8620

W PDAVENPORT, LLC XXXXXX5555
24

25. 
9. Defendant STEVEN W .GRIM M had sole signatory authority overBankof America

26t . account number XXXXXX447 l in the name of Pro Dcsign.

3
: ;

! !i 
.
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l ' l 0. Defendant STEVEN W . GRIM M had sole signatory authority over the following

2 bank accounts at Colonial Bank:

3 Account Holder Account Number
ADAVENPORT, LLC XXXXXX8174i

' BLABEE LLC XXXXXX87944;
CGARVW , LLC XXXXxX9810

5 DW ALLACE, LLC XXxXXX9828
IDEAN, LLC XXXXXX8182

6 JBARNES, LLC XXXXXX9885
JCORTE ,S LLC XXXXXX9802

7 JGARVE ,Y LLC XXXXXX8844
JSTEVEN ,s LLc xxxxxxgg0l

8 Jw lNsLo ,w  LLc xxxxxx9844
M W INOW SKI, LLC XXXXXX9869

9 Patriot Grading & Utilities, LLC XXXXXX9927
Patriot Transport, LLC XxXXXX4077

10 ' PILD ,E LLC XXXXXX814l
I RBEUCHAT

: LLC XXXXXX9794
l l RGAIW E ,Y LLc xxxxxx9851

SCOM ER, LLc XXXXXX9032
12 ' Select Equities

, LLC XXXXXX5035
i steven Grimm xxxxxx 1628

13: TLIUZZ ,A LLC XXXXXX8190
TM CGUIRE, LLC XXXXXX8851

14 TVANCLEVE, LLC XXXXXX9935
TVANOOSTENDORP, LLC XXXXXX9836

15 VSQUILLANTE, LLC XXXXXX9024
W PATTERSON , LLC XXXXXX9893

1 6

17 1 1 . DefendantEvE E. M AZZARELLA had signatory authority overthe following bank

18 accounts:

19 Account Holder Bank Aecount Number
11 ABRO 

.
.,

W hl LLC Colonial Bank XXXXXX4I 19
20 CLOUCE 

.
.L LLC Colonial Bank XXXXXX4I27

CROJAS, LLC Colonial Bank XXXXXX4 l43
2 1 : . Distinctive Real Estate & Investments First Republic Bank XXXXXXX 1 3 l 2

Distinctive Real Estate & Investments First Republic Bank XXXXXXXS 1 44
22 Distinctive Real Estate & lnvestments, lnc. W ashington M utual XXXXX6267

Distinctive Real Estate & Investments, lnc. W ells Fargo Bank XXXXXX9 I 1 1
23 Distinctive Real Estate & Investments, Inc. W ells Fargo Bank XXXXXX9680

Eve E.Mazzarella Bjtnk of America XXXXXX3O l 7
24 Eve E M azzarella Flrst Republic Bank XXXXXXX5436

Eve E.M azzarella Bank of Am erica XXXXXX7670
25 Eve E.M azzarella W ashington M utual XXXXXX8778
I Eve E.M azzarella W ells Fargo Bank XXXXXX8970

26 Giovanni K Mazzarella - A Minor by Eve E Mazzarella W ells Fargo Bank XXXXXX8487

i
!
: 4
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: J

1 . : PALTM ANN, LLC Colonial Bank XXXXXX4135
' Prem ier Design Conceptsslnc. Bank of Am erica XXXXXX4578
2 . Select Equities, LLC W ells Fargo Bank XXXXXX0544
: i select Equities

, 
LLC W ashington M tlttlal XXX XXX6472

3 Select Equities Investments 111, LLC W ells Fargo Bank XXXXXX0569
Select Equities lnvestm ents 111, LLC W ells Fargo Bank XXXXXX0577

4 Select Equities Investments IV, LLC W elfs Fargo Bank XXXXXX0585
Select Equities lnvestm ents V, LLC W ells Fargo Bank XXXXXX0593

5 Select Equitics Investments VI, LLc W ells Fargo Bank XXXXXXO6OI
Select Equities lnvestments VlI, LLC W ells Fargo Bank XXXXXX0619

61 . Select Equities Investments VIIl, LLC W ells Fargo Bank XXXXXX0627
I ! Select Equities Investments lX, LLC W ells Fargo Bank XXXXXX0536
7. Stephen Lindsay - A M inor By Eve E M azzarella W ells Fargo Bank XXXXXX I 600

8 l2. Defendant M ELISSA R. BEECROFT was resident agent and manager of Secured

9. ' Mortgage Services, LLC (ttsecured Mortgage''), a Limited Liability Company registered with the

l ()! ; Nevada Secretary of State.

i il 1 
. 

l3. Defendant CHRISTINA R. THOM PSON was resident agent and m anager of CRT

12 Consulting, LLC, a Limited Liability Company registered with the Nevada Secretary of State.

l 3: r 14. Defendant JYOTHI PANIKKAR was managing member of lntegrity Mortgage,

14 LLC, a Limited Liability Company registered with the Nevada Secretary of State.

1 5 i 5. Defendant AMY R. ORTIZ was Registered Agent, President, Secretary, and

l 6' Treasurer of Reliant M ortgage Corporation a dom estic com oration registered with the Nevada

1 7 Secretary of State.

1 8i i l 6 A çtstraw buyer'' is an individual who allows residential real estate (ttproperty'' or

1 9 ttproperties'') to be purehased in his or her name to facilitate the acquisition of that property by an
!

20 unidentified party.

2 1 ; ' l 7
. 

A çtthird party disbursement'' is the issuance of m oney at the closing of a mortgage

22, 

Ioan to a person or entity that is typically not entitlcd to money at the close of the transaction as are
. I

23 the seller, buyer, or any of the business entities that contributed to the creation or conducting of the

i I24 transaction and similar entities such as realtors, mortgage companies, lenders, mortgage brokers, title

25 and escrow companies, etc.

26. . . .

5

J I
! i
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I .

1 COUNT ONE
Conspiracy to Comm it Bank Fraud, M ail Fraud, and W ire Fraud

2

31 1 . Paragraphs 1 throtlgh 1 7 of the întroduction to this Indictment are re-alleged and
! I

1 '4 incorporated herein as if set fol'th in full.

5 2. From in or about 2003 to on or about M arch 12, 2008, in the State and Federal

6 District of Nevada and elsewhere,

7
STEVEN W . G RIM M ,

8 EVE E. M AZZARELLA,
M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,

9 CHRISTINA R. THO M PSON,
I AM v R. o RTlz, and

1 0 JYOTHI PANIKKAR,

I 1 2 ; defendants herein, knowingly and willfully combined, conspired, and agreed with each other, and with

12 others known and unknown to the grand jury:
! :l 3 ' a. To devise a scheme and artifsce to defraud and to obtain m oney and property
I
: I14 under the custody and control of federally-insured tinancial institutions, by means of false and

1 5 fraudulent pretenses, representations and promises that would cause a bank to part with money or

16 property in violation of Title I 8, United States Codc, Section 1344.

1 7 b. To use the United States Postal Servîce and commercial interstate carriers to
i 1
:

18 send and deliver mortgage loan applications and other supporting documentation, for purposes of

19 executing a scheme and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money and property by means of false

20 and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and prom ises, in violatfon of Title I 8, United States Code,

2 1 Section l 34 l ; and
' 222! c. To transm it and cause to be transm itted by m eans of wire communications
. 1
'
' f in interstate commerce, funds, for purposes of executing a scheme and artitice to defraud and for23
I

! .24 
. obtaining m oney and property by m eans of false and fraudulent pretensess representations, and

25 ' promises, in violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1 343.i 
J
: I

26 . . . .

6
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: '

l . The Obiectives of the Conspiracy and Scheme to Defraud
; ;
2: ' 3. The object of the conspiracy and scheme was to obtain money and property by

31 causing false information regarding straw buyers' employment, incom e, and assets to be placed in the
I

4 I straw buyers' applications and supporting documentation to obtain mortgage Ioans from financial
i

5 institutions to purchase residential real estate ('tproperty'' or ttproperties'>). Through these

6'' transactions
, defendants obtained control of approximately 227 properties and obtained money from

i '
71l tinancial institutions by causing the money from the mortgage loans to be diverted to their own use
I l

8I: and benetit and the use and benefit of others. Tlle total purchase price of the approximate 227
r

'

9 properties was greater than $107,000,000.

10 M anner and M eans
I !
il 4 The mannerand means bywhich the objectives oftheconspiracywere accomplished11 

.

12 include, but were not limited to, the following:

1 34 ' a. lt was part of the conspiracy that defendants solicited persons and caused

I ja stjes
.l4. persons with good credit ratings to be solicited to act as straw buyers to purc ase prope

15 b. lt was further part of the conspiracy that defendants caused straw buyers to
i i

161: make offers to purchase properties substantially above the sellers' asking prices. Defendants caused
:

17:1: the sellers to agree that the excess funds be redirected to business entities controlled by G RIM M  and
!

I 1l 81 
I M AZZARELLA under the pretense of making upgrades or repairs to the properties.
I

19 . c. lt was tkrther part of the conspiracy that defendants caused straw buyers to
! :

20 apply for mortgage loans from tinancial institutions to purchase properties.

21 d. lt was further part of the conspiracy that defendants knowingly placed and

22' caused to be placed on the straw buyers loan applications and supporting documentation, materially

23 false inform ation regarding straw buyers' places of employm ent, income, assets, and intention to

24 occupy the properties as their primary residences which information defendants then and there well

25' ! knew to be false.
I

26 I . , .
I I
I :
! !
; 7I I
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. l .

1 e. lt was further part of the conspiracy that defendants caused tinancial

21 ! institutions to transmit through interstate wire comfnunications money to fund the mortgage Ioans.

3 f. lt was further part of the conspiracy that defendants caused title and escrow

4 companies to make third party disbursements to entities which were controlled by defendants

5 GRIM M  and M AZZARELLA and are identified in the introduction hereto, for defendants

6 G RIM M 'S and M AZZARELLA 'S own use and benefit.

7 g. lt was further pa14 of the conspiracy that defendants GRIMM and!

8' MAZZARELLA caused mortgage brokers, Ioan ofticers and others associated with the straw buyer

9 transactions to remit a portion of their commissions and fees to defendants GRIM M and

10 M AZZARELLA.

l 1 h, It was further part of the conspiracy that defendants paid persons to be straw

12 buyers.

l 3 i. It was furtherpartof the conspiracythat defendants created numerous limited

14 Iiability companies ('GLLC'' or 6iLLC's'') identified in the introduction hereto. Defendants named the

l 5 LLC'S after straw buyers, typically using the straw buyers first initial and Iast nam e.

l 6 j. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendants caused straw buyers tcl

I 7 sign documents transferring their interest in the properties they had purchased into one of the LLC's.

1 8 Defendants would not pay straw buyers for the tlse of their identities until they transferred their

1 9 interest in a property to an LLC.

20 k. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendants opened bank accounts

21 ' for each LLC . These bank accounts are identitied in the introduction hereto.

22 1. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendants GRIM M  and

23 ' M AZZARELLA used the LLC bank accounts to control the illicit proceeds of the mortgage

24 transactions.

25: m
. lt was further part of the conspiracy that once defendants GRIM M  and

i !
I

26. . M AZZARELLA obtained control over a property through a straw buyer transaction, defendants

8
I .
!
' jI 
I
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1 : . would again sell the same property to another straw buyer at an intlated price. Defendants thereby

2 engaged in approximately 432 straw buyer transactions involving the approxim ate 227 properties.

3 n. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendants GRIM M  and

4 M AZZARELLA defaulted on mortgage payments on many of the m ortgage Ioans which caused the

5 related properties to go into foreclosure. At least l 43 of the approxim ate 227 properties purchased

6 by defendants have been sold in foreclosure causing Iosses to fi nancial institutions greater than

7: ; seventeen million dollars ($ 1 7,000,000) to the date of this superseding indictment.

8 AI1 in violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1 349.

9 CO UNTSTW O TH RO UG H FO URTEEN
Bank Fratld

1 0

1 1 1. The allegations set forth in the introduction and count one to this Indictment are re-

12 alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

i i1 3 
. 2. From in or about 2003, to on or about M arch 1 2, 2008, in thc State and Federal

14 District of Nevada,

15 STEVEN W . GRIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

l6i' M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,
12 CHRISTINA R. THOMPSON,

l7:i AM Y R. ORTIZ, and
JYOTHI PANIK KAR,

l 8

19 defendants herein, did devise and intend to devise a scheme and artitice to defraud and to obtain

20 money and property under the custody and control of federally-insured financial institutions, by

2 1 i i means of false and fraudulent pretensess representations and promises that would cause a bank to part
I :

22.! with money or property.i
i' 
:23' ' The Scheme and Artifice

24 3. It was part ofthe scheme and artitice thatdefendants caused straw buyers to purchase

25! properties on their behalf.
I

26j . . .:

9
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1 4. Itwas furtherpart ofthe scheme and artifice that defendants caused offers to purchase

2 properties to be made substantially above the sellers' asking prices, GRIM M and M AZZARELLA

3 caused the sellers to agree that the excess funds be redirected to one of their business entities under

4 ' the pretense of making upgrades or repairs to the properties.

5 5. It was further part of the schem e and artitice that defendants caused straw buyers to

6 apply for mortgage Ioans from tinancial institutions to purchase properties. Through these

7 transactions, defendants obtained money from financial institutions by causing m oney from the

8. : mortgage Ioans to be diverted to defendants' own use and benefit.

9 6, lt was further part of the scheme and artifice that defendants knowingly placed and

10 caused to be placed on the straw buyers' loan applications and supporting documentation, m aterially

I 1 false information regarding straw buyers' places of employment, income, assets, and intention to
!
!

I 2. occupy the properties as their primary residences which information defendants then and there well

l 3. ' knew to be f'alse.

14:F 7. It was furtherpart of the scheme alld artifice that detkndants paid persons to be straw
i .

1 5 buyers.

16 8. lt was furtherpart of the scheme and artitice that defcndants caused federally-insured

17 tinancial institutions to transm it money to title and escrow companies to fund the mortgage loans to

l 8 complete the straw buyer transactions.
!

I 9'. ' 9. lt was further part of the scheme and artifice that defendants caused title and escrow
1 '

20 companies to disperse a portion of the loan money from the straw buyer transactions to companies

2 l controlled by defendants G RIM M  and M AZZARELLA .

22' I 0. lt was further part of the scheme and artitice that defendants created numerous

23 limited liability companies (tCLLC'' or 1çLLC's''). Defendants named most of the LLC'S after straw

24 buyers, typically using the straw buyer's first initial and last name.

25 1 1 . lt was further pal4 of the scheme and artifice that defendants caused straw buyers to

26 sign over their interests in the properties they purcllased to one of the LLC's. Defendants would not

1 O
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:

1 ' pay straw buyers for the use of their identities until they transfen'ed their interests in a property to an

2 LLC.

3 1 2. It was further part of the schem e and artifice that defendants opened bank accounts

4 for each of the LLC's.

I :5 l3. lt was further part of the scheme and al-tifice that defendants used the LLC bank

6 accounts to control the illicit proceeds of the mortgage transactions.
' '

7. ! I4. lt was further part of the scheme and artifice that once defkndants obtained control

8 over a property through a straw buyer transaction and transferto an LLC, defendants would again sell

9 the same property from an LLC to another straw buyer at an intlated price.

l 0 . 15. It was further part of the scheme and artifice that defendants defaulted on mortgage

1 I payments on many of the mortgage loans which caused the related properties to go into foreclosure.

12 Bank Fraud

1 3 1 6. On or about the dates identified below, in the Federal District of Nevada, the

l4! ' defendants, for the purpose of executing and attempting to execute the above-described scheme and

1 5 artitice, did knowingly cause to be submitted to the federally-insured financial institutions identified

1 6. below, loan applications containing false and fraudulent pretenses, representations and promises in

l 71 order to cause the tinancial institutions to loan money to fund the purchase of the properties identitied

l 8 ' below, with the submission of each loan application and supporting documentation constituting a

19 separate violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Sections 1344 and 2:

20 Count Defendants Date Pronertv Financial lnstitution

2 l 2 Steven W . Grim m 12/26/06 1408 S. 6th St. Ohio Savings Bank
Eve E. M azzarella Las Vegas, Nevada

22
: l 3 Steven W . Grimm 3/28/07 6609 Alta Dr. Ohio Savings Bank

23' Eve E. M azzarella Las Vegas, Nevada

24 4 Steven W . Grimm 4/9/07 270 I Shady Pond Ohio Savings Bank
Eve E. M azzarella Las Vegas, Nevada

25i ;
I

26: 5 Steven W . Grimm 4/12/07 1 800 S. l 6tI' St. Ohio Savings Bank
. i Eve E. M azzarella Las Vegas, Nevada

11
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:1 Count Defendants Date Propertv Financial lnstitution

2 6 Steven W . Grimm 4/25/07 3228 Dusty Daylight Ct. Am Trust Bank
Eve E. M azzarella Henderson, Nevada

3
7 Steven W . Grim m 6/15/07 1 729 Rolling Hills Dr., Am Trust Bank

4 Eve E. M azzarella Las Vegas, Nevada

5 8 Steven W . Grimm 8/2 1/06 1 3 l l 5tl' Place BNC M ortgage, Inc.,
Eve E. M azzarella Las Vegas, Nevada a subsidiary of-

6. . M elissa R. Beecroft Lehman Brothers
l

7. 9 Steven W . Grim m 3/29/05 63 10 W . Azure Dr. BNC M ortgagc, Il)c.,
Eve E. M azzarella Las Vcgas, Nevada a subsfdiary of-

8 M elissa R. Beecroft Lehman Brothers
Christina R. Thompson

9
10 Steven W . Grim m 9/13/05 9360 Red Rose Ave. BNC M ortgage, lnc.,l 

II 0 ! Eve E. M azzarella Las Vegas, Nevada a subsidiary of
! ' M elissa R. Beecroft Lehman Brothers

l 1 : . Christina R. Thompson
: .

1 2 I 1 Steven W . Grimm 2/13/04 9570 Rosada W ay W M C M ortgage Com .,
Eve E. M azzarella Las Vcgas, Nevada a subsidiary of

1 3 M elissa R. Beecroft G.E. M oncy Bank
Christina R. Thompson

14 Amy R. Ortiz

15 l 2 Steven W . Grimm 6/24/05 85 12 Sum mer Vista Ave. BNC M ortgage, Inc.,
Eve E. Mazzarella Las Vcgas, Nevada a subsidiary of

1 6. ' M elissa R. Beecroft Lchman Brothers
Amy R. Ortiz

I 7
' 13 Steven W . Grimm 3/31/06 6004 Chessinaton Ave. Greenpoint M ortgage,l I u' x .

l 8. Eve E. M azzarella Las Vcgas, Nevada a subsidiary ot
' Amy R. Ortiz Capital One
I

l 9 I
14 Steven W . Grimm l 1/15/05 l 752 Clear River Falls Ln. BNC M ortgage, Inc.,

20 Eve E. M azzarella Las Vegas, Nevada a subsidiary of
M elissa R. Beecroft Lehman Brothers

2 l Jyothi Panikkar

22 COUNT FIFTEEN
Conspiracy to Commit M oney Laundering

23

24' . 1 . The allegations set forth in the introdtlction and counts one and two to this Indictment

25 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

26 . . .

12
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1

l : 2. From in orabout 2003,to on orabout M arch 12, 2008, in the State and Federal District
1 1
2. of Nevada and elsewhere.

3 STEVEN W . GRIM M ,
EVE. E. M AZZARELLA,!

4 M ELISSA BEECROFX
' CHRISTINA R. THO M PSO N,
51 AM Y ORTIZ, and

gvovju paxjxju jt,
61

7 defendants herein, did knowingly combine, conspire, confederate, and agree with each other, and with

81 : others to known and unknown to the grand jury to commit the following offenses:

9 a. To conduct tinancial transactions, in and affecting interstate and foreign

10I r com merce, involving the proceeds of specified unlawfbl activities, to wit: bank fraud, mail fraud, and:
i

1 1 wire fraud, with the intent to promote the carrying on of such specified unlawful activities, and

l2l ' knowing that the property involved in the transactions represented the proceeds of some form of
1 I

1 3 unlawful activity, in violation of l 8 U.S.C. j l 956(a)( 1 )(A)(i)', and
: !

1 4 b. To conduct financial transactions, in and affecting interstate and foreign

1 5 commerce, involving the proceeds of specified unlawful activities, to wit: bank fraud, mail fraud, and

16 wire fraud, knowing that the transactions were designed in whole and in part to conceal and disguise

1 7 the nature, source, ownership, and control of the proceeds of such specified unlawful activities, and

18 knowing that the property involved in the transactions represented the proceeds of some form of
. l

19I unlawful activity, in violation of 1 8 U.S.C. j 1 956(a)( l )(B)(i)',

20. c. To knowinglyengage in monetary transactions,that is the deposit, withdrawal

2 l and transfer of funds and monetal'y instruments by, through and to a tinancial institution, in and

22! i affecting interstate commerce
, in criminally derived property of a value greater than $ 1 0,000, such; I

i
23.1 1 property having been derived from specified unlawful activities, to wit: bank fraud, m ail fraud, and

24.! wire fraud
, knowing such transactions involved crim inally derived property, in violation of Title 18,

251 ' United States Codes, Section 1 957.
I I

2611

I '
I 1
i
I 13
! l
! !
i
I :
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1 Obiects. M anner and M eans of the Conspiracv

2'i 3
. The objects of the money laundering conspiracy were for defendants GRIMM and

1 '

3' : M AZZARELLA to obtain m oney from the straw btlyer mortgage loan transactions and to conceal

4 receipt of those m onies.

5 4. One ofthe mannerand means by which defendant G RIM M  obtained m oney fron) the

6'
. 

' 

straw buyer transactions was that defendant GRIM M  caused Ioan ofticers and mortgage brokers to

7 agree that if defendant G RIM M  would send his straw buyers to those individtlals to obtain their

8 mortgage Ioans, they would return a percentage of their commissions and fkes to dcfendant G RIM M

9 inthe fonmofkickbacks. Defendants BEECRO FT, THOM PSO N, O RTIZ and PANIKKAR agreed

10 with defendant GRIM M  that they would return a percentage of thcir com missions and fees fkom

1 1 defendant G RIM M 'S straw buyers' transactions.

122. 5. Defendants BEECROFT, TH OM PSON, ORTIZ and PANIKKAR tlsed other

I i13I I individuals to receive comm ission checks from the straw buyer transactions. These individuals cashcd

14 the comm ission checks, kept a portion for themselves and either turned ovcr the remainder to

1 51 ' defendant GRIM M
, or returned it to the co-conspirator who gave them the check who in turn gave the

II 
!l 6. remainder to defendant GRIM M .
j '

l7! l 6. Anothermanner in whichdefendants G RIM M  and M AZZARELLA receivcd monies
!

1 81 from the straw buyer transactions was to cause third-pal'ty disbursements to be made to shell

19 companies under the control of defendants G RIM M  and M AZZARELLA.

20 7. Afterdefendants GltlM M and M AZZARELLA caused money to be disburscd from

i! closingto business entities they controlled
, they moved naoney between m ultiple accounts, but would21

22 ultimately deposit the m oney into their personal bank accounts. These transactions were often greatcr

23. ! than $10,000.
E I

24i ! A1l in violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 195641,).
1 I

1 I2 5 
I j . . .i 
!

26j . . .

;

I 1 4
' 

ji 
!1 
-

!
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1'' COUNT SIXTEEN
Engaging in M onetary Transactions in Property Derived From Specitied Unlawful Activity

2
' !
3. l . The allegations set forth in the introduction and counts one through three to this

4 lndictment are re-alleged and incorporated by refcrcnce as though fully set forth herein.

i 2 on or about Janua:.y 9
, 2007, in the state and Federal District ot-xevada,5 .

6 EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

71 ' defendant herein, did knowingly engage and attem pt to engage in monetary transactions by, through,
ë !
8 and to a financial institution, affecting interstate commerce, in crim inally derivcd property of a value

9 . greater than $ 10,000, that is, a $ 160,000 deposit, such property having been derived from a specified
r

1 0 unlawful activity, that is, M ail Fraud, in violation ot--ritle 1 8, United States Code, Section l 34 l ; W ire

1 l Fraud, in violation of Title l 8, United States Code, Section 1 343; and Bank Fraud, in violation of Title

1 2 I 8, United States Code, Section l 344, knowing such transaction involved crim inally derived property,

1 3 aIl in violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1 957.

l 4il 
cocxT SEVENTEEN

l 5 Aid and Assist with Fraud and False Statements

16 From on or about January 26, 2007, to on or about June 1 5, 2007, in the State and Federal

l 7 District of Nevada and elsewhere,
. i

l 8i : AM Y R. ORTIZ,
i i

1 9. ! the defendant herein, did willfully aid and assist in. and procure, counsel, and advise the preparation

20. : and presentation to the lnternal Revenue Service of Forms l 099-M isc. for the calendar year 2006,

!2 1 ! which were false and fraudulent as to m aterial matters, to wit: defendant tiled two Forms 1099-M isc.
I ;

22 . that falsely attributed $122,285 in income to two individuals to whom defendant had not paid that

23..

24 . . .

25 . . .

26 . . .I I
I '

15
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1 income to conceal from the Intenzal Revenue Service that defendant had paid S l 25,243.58 to

2 M ELISSA BEECROFT, all in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7206(2).

3 ! '
: .

4 . . . . .

5 . . .

6 . . .

7 . . .

8 . . ,

9 ' '

l 0 . . .

1 1 . . .

l 2 . . .

1 3 . . .

1 4 . . .

l 5 . . .

I 6 I . . .

1 7 . . .

1 8 . . .

1 9 . . .

20 . . .

211 . . .
' II

22 l ! . . .
I i

231 l

24 . . .

2 5 . . . .

26 I ' . . .

16
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l FORFEITURE ALLEGATION ONE
Conspiracy to Comm it Bank Fraud, M ail Fraud, and W ire Fraud

2

3 1 . Theallegations ofcountone of this Indictmentare herebyrealleged and incorporated

4 herein by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeittlre pursuant to the provision of Title l 8, United

5 States Code, Section 98 1 (a)( l)(C) and Title 28, Unitcd States Code, Section 2461 (c).

6 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Count One of this Indictm ent,

7 STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
. EVE E. M AZZARELLA,
8!' ; M ELISSA R. BEECROFX
; STINA R. THOM PSON,CHRI
9 AM v R. oRTlz, and

JYOTH I PANIKKAR,
1 0

1 1 . defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived

! i12 from
, proceeds traceable to a conspiracy in violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1 349 to:

1 3 ' commit violations of Title l 8, Ullited States Code, Section 134 l ; Title l 8, United States Code, Section

14 1 343., and Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1 344 up to $ 1 07,000,000.00 in United States Currency.

I 5 . 3. lf any property being subject to tbrfeiture pursuant to Title I 8, United States Code,l 
.

16 Section 98 l(a)(l)(C) and Title 28, United Statcs Code, Section 246 l (c), as a result of any act or

17 omission of the defendants -

l 8 ' a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due dfligence;

19 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

20' c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court',

21 d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

22 e. has been commingled with other property that eannot be divided without

23 difficulty;
'

r ! it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up24
'1

25' ' to $ 107,000,000 in United States Currency.

26 . . .

17
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l All pursuantto Title I 8, United States Code, Section 981(a)(1)(C) and Title 28, United States

! code Section 246l(c) and Title 21
, United States Code, Section 853(p).2 ,

3 FO RFEITURE ALLEGATION TW O
Conspiracy to Comm it Bank Fraud, M ail Fraud, and W ire Fraud

4

5 1 . The allegations ofcountone of this Indictmentare hereby realleged and incorporated

61 ' herein by reference for the pumose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title l 8. United

7 States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A).

8 2. Upon a conviction of the felony oftknses charged in Count One of this Indictment,

9 STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,:

. ssA R BEECROFT10' M ELI . ,
'' CHRISTINA R . THOM PSON,

l l AM Y R. ORTIZ, and
JYOTHI PANIK KAR,

1 2

1 3 defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of Americas any property constituting, or derived

14 from, proceeds obtained directly or indirectly, as the result of a conspiracy in violation of Title 1 8,

I 5. . United States Code, Section 1 349 to comm it violations of Title l 8, United States Code, Section I 34 l ;

1 6. Title l 8, United States Code, Section 1343; and Title 1 8, United States Code. Section l 344 up to
I !

17j 1 $ 107,000,000.00 in United States Currency.
i !

I 81 ' 3. If any property being subject to forfkittlre pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code,

19 Section 982(a)(2)(A), as a result of any act or omission of the defendants -

20' a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;
! E

2 1 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party',

22I c. has been place beyond thejurisdiction of the court;.
1 I

23 . d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

24 e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without

25 difticulty;

26 . . .

1 8
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iI
:

1 : it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up
I i
21 ' to $ 107,000,000.00 in United States Currency.
! .
3; . Al1 pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(2)(A) and 982(17) and Title 2 I ,
I i

41 United States Codes Section 853(p).
j '
: I5:! FORFEITUR. E ALLEGATION THREE
! Bank Fraud!

6 I !

7 1 . The allegations ofcountTwo ofthis Indictment are hereby realleged and incorporated

81 herein by reference for the purpose of alleging forf-eiture pursuant to the provision of Title 1 8, United

I I9 States Code, Section 98 l(a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 I (c).I

10 2 U on a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Count Two of this Indictment. p ,

i '1 1 STEVEN W
. G RIM M ,

EVE E. M AZZARELLA,
12! M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,

CH RISTINA R. THO M PSON,
13' AM Y R. ORTIZ, and

'i Jvo Tm  pzsxjxxxR,
1 4 I :
: :

1 5: : defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived

16: from, proceeds traceable to a violation of Title l 8, United States Code, Section 1 344 or a conspiracy
i

17I I to commit such an offense up to $590,000.00 in United States Currency.
I i

l 8i ë 3. If any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,
: ;
l i Section 98 1(a)(1)(C) and Title 28

, United States Code, Section 246l(c), as a result of any act orl 9 .

20' om ission of the defendants -

2 1 l a cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

i i b has been transferred or sold to
, or deposited with, a third party;22: .

23 c, has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;

24' d, has been substantially diminished in value, or;
:

25: . e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26! ' difticulty;

1 9
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1 it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants

2 up to $590,000.00 in United States Currency.

i d Tftle 28
, United States3 AlI pursuant to Title I 8

, United States Code, Sectfon 98l(a)( 1 )(C) an

41 ' Code, Section 246l(c),. Title I 8, United States Code, Section 1344', and Title 2 1 , United States Code,

5 section 853(p).

6 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION FO UR
Bank Fraud

7

8 l . The allegations ofcount-f'wo ofthis Indictment are hereby realleged and incomorated

9 ' herein by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeittlre pursuant to the provision of Title l 8, United
g '

l 01 States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A).

1 l 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Count Two of this Indictment,

12 STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

1 3 M ELISSA R. BEECROFX
CHRISTINA R. THOM PSO N,

14 AM Y R. O RTIZ, and
JYOTHI PANIK KAR,

1 5

16 defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived

1 7 from, proceeds obtained directly or indirectly, as the rcsult of a violation of Title l 8. United States

1 8 Code, Section 1 344 up to $590,000,00 in United States Currency.

1 9' 3. If any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code,
I

20 Section 982(a)(2)(A), as a result of any act or omission of the defendants -

2 l : a. cannot be Iocated upon the exercise of due diligence;

i
22 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

23 c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
i d has been substantially diminished in value

, or;24j E .

25 e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26 difficulty;

20

! l
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I I
. I

1 I . it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants

2 up to $590,000.00 in United States Currency.

3! 1 AlI pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(2)(A) and 982(b); Title l 8,I 
i;

'

4. United States Code, Section I 344; and Title 2 1 , United States Code, Section 853(p).

5 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION FIVE
Bank Fraud

6

7 l . The allegations of Count Three of this Indictment are hereby realleged and
i !I
8! incorporated herein by reference for the pumose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title
:
9. ' I 8

, United States Code, Section 98 1(a)(1)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 I (c).

10 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Count Three of this lndictment,
; I

1 1 STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

12 M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,
I CHRISTINA R. THO M PSON,

131. AM Y R. ORTIZ, andI
JYOTHI PANIKK AR,

l 4 .I I
. !

1 5 defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived
!

16 from , proceeds traceable to a violation of Title l 8, United States Code, Section 1 344 or a conspiracy

17 to commit such an offense up to $268,000.00 in United States Currency.

1 8: ' 3. If any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code,
E

1 9 ! Section 98 1(a)(1 )(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 l (c), as a result of any act or

20 omission of the defendants -

21 2.1 a. cannot be located upon the excrcise of due diligence;

I I .22' b
. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party,

! :
I i23
! ' c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;

24 ' d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

25 e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26! difticulty;
1 'I

. : 2 1
' :
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; 'l 
. it is the intent of the United States of America to scck forfeiture of any properties of the defendants

2 up to $268,000.00 in United States Currency.

3! . AlI pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code, Section 98 1 (a)( l )(C) and Title 28, United States

:4 Code
, Section 2461 (c); Title l 8, United States Code, Section l 344; and Title 2 1 , United States Code,

5. Section 853(p).

6 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION SIX
Bank Fraud

7!

8 1 . The allegations of Count Three of this lndictment are hereby realleged and

94 incom orated herein by reference forthe purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title

10 '. 1 8, United States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A).

I 1 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Cotlnt Three of this Indictment,

12 STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

13 M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,
CHRISTINA R. THO M PSON,

14 AM Y R. ORTIZ, and
JYO THI PANIK KAR,

15

l6l ' defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States ofAmerica, any property constituting, or derived

1 7 from, proceeds obtained directly or indirectly, as the result of a violation ot Title 1 8, United States

l 8 Code, Section 1344 up to $268,000.00 in United States Currency.
i
sj:I 9 3

. lf any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code,
;

I .20 Section 982(a)(2)(A), as a result of any act or omission of the defendants -

2 l a. cannot be located upon the exercisc t)f due diligencc;
' 
:

22' b, has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

23!1 c. has been place beyond thejurisdiction of the court;
i !24 d

. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

25: . e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26 difticulty',

22
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1 it is the intent of the United States of Am erica to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants

2 up to $268,000.00 in Unitcd States Currency.!

3j i A1l pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(2)(A) and 982(b); Title 1 8,

4 United States Code, Section 1344; and Title 2 1 , United States Code, Scction 853(p).

5 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION SEVFN
Bank Fraud

6

7 l . The allegations of Count Fourof this Indictmentare hereby realleged and incorporated
' ;8. herein by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title l 8, United
i !
j '9 States Code, Section 98 l(a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States Code. Section 246 1 (c).
( '

10 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Count Four of this lndictment.

l l STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

12 M ELfSSA R. BEECROFT,
CH RISTINA R. THO M PSON,

13 AM Y R. O RTIZ, and
JYOTHI PANIKKAK

1 4

1 5 defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States ofAmerica, any property constituting, or derived

1 6. . from, proceeds traceable to a violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Scction l 344 or a conspiracy

l 7 to commit sueh an offense up to $5 1 0,000.00 in Unitcd States Currency.

18 3. If any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code,

19 . Section 98 l(a)(l)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 I (c), as a result of any act or

20 om ission of the defendants -

2 l a. cannot be located upon the excrcise of due diligcnce;

22i ! b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
j '

23 c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;

24 d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

25! ! e. has been comm ingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26 difficulty',

I '
! !!

23
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l it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

2 to $510,000.00 in United States Currency.

3 AI1 pursuant to Title I 8, United States Code, Section 98 1 (a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States

4 Code, Section 2461 (c); Title 1 8, United States Codc, Section l 344*, and Title 21, United States Code,

5 Section 853(p).

6 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION EIG HT
Bank Fraud

7

8 1 . The allegations of Count Fourot-this Indictmentare hereby realleged and incorporated

9 herein by reference for the purpose of alleging fortkiture pursuant to the provision of Title I 8, United

01 : States Code
, Section 982(a)(2)(A).I 2

1 l 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Count Four of this lndictment,

l 2 STEVEN W . GRIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

1 3 M ELISSA R. BEECROFX
CHRISTINA R. THOM PSO N,

14 AM Y R. O RTIZ, and
JYOTHI PANIKIQAR,

l 5:

1 6 defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived

l 7 from, proceeds obtained directly or indirectly, as the result of a violation of Title 18, United States

1 8 Code, Section 1 344 up to $510,000.00 in United Statcs Currency.

19 3. lf any property being subject to t-orfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Codes

20 Section 982(a)(2)(A), as a result of any act or omission of the defendants -

2 1 ' a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;
l i

22i b has been transferred or sold to
, or deposited with, a third party;

I !

I23j I c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
' 

!24' d
. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

25 e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26 difticulty;

I ;
:

24
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1 it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants

2 up to $5 1 0,000.00 in United States Currency.

3 A1l pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Codes Sections 982(a)(2)(A) and 982(b); Title 1 8,

4 ' United States Code, Section l 344; and Title 21 , United States Code, Section 853(p).
J .
I5 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION NJ

-NE

6 '

7 1 . The allegations ofcount Five ofthis lndictment are hereby realleged and incorporated

8 herein by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title 1 8, United

9 States Code, Section 98 1(a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 I (c).

I 0 2. Upon a conviction of the felony oftknses charged in Count Five of this Indictment,

I l STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLAN

I '12 M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,
i CHRISTINA R. THOM PSON,

13j! AMY R. ORTIZ, and
: JYO THI PANIKK AR,
i

l 4

l 5 defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived

l 6 from, proceeds traceable to a violation of Title l 8, United States Code, Section I 344 or a conspiracy

171 ' to commit such an offense up to $485,000.00 in United States Currency.i
1 8 3. If any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,

l I

19 Sectitm 98 l (a)( 1)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461 (c), as a result of any act or

20 om ission of the defendants -

2 1 i a. cannot be located upon the excrcise of due diligence;

22 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
i I

23i I c has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court',

24; ' d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

25 e. has been comm ingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26 diftqculty;

I !
I .1

25
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1 it is the intent of the United States of Am erica to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

2 to $485,000.00 in United States Currency.

31 All pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 981(a)( I )(C) and Title 28, United States

4 Code, Section 2461 (c); Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1 344,' and Title 2 ) , United States Code,

5 Section 853(p).

6'l FORFEITURE ALLEGATION TEN
i . Bank Fraud
7 I

8, 
l . The allegations ofcountFive of this lndictmentare hereby realleged and incorporated

l9 herein by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeittlre pursuant to the provision of Title 1 8, United

l0I States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A).
I l 6 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offbnses charged in Count Five of thïs Indictment,
!: '

l2; STEVEN W . GRIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

13 M ELISSA R. BEECROFX
CH RISTINA R. THO M PSON,

14 AM Y R. ORTIZ, and
JYOTH I PANIKKAR,

1 5

l6i defendants herein, shall fbrfeit to the United States ofAmerica, any property constituting, or derived

i .l71 l from, proceeds obtained directly or indirectly, as the result of a violation of Title l 8, United States

l 8 Code, Section 1 344 up to $485,000.00 in United States Currency.

1 9 3. If any property being subject to fortkiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,

20 Section 982(a)(2)(A), as a result of any act or omission ofthe defendants -

2 1 a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence',
: ;

22' b. has been transfeaed or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

23 c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
: :

24 d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

25 e. has been commingled with othcr property that cannot be divided without
l

26 difficulty;

26
:
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1 it is the intent of the United States of Am erica to seek forfeiture of any properties of the detkndants up

2 to $485,000.00 in United States Currency.

3 A1l pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(2)(A) and 982(b)', Title 1 8,i
j '4 ' United States Code

, Section l 344,. and Title 2 l , United States Code, Section 853(p).I '

5:' FORFEITURE ALLEGATIO N ELEVEN
Bank Fraud

6

7 1 . The allegations of Count Six of this Indictm ent are hereby realleged and incorporated

8 herein by reference tbr the purpose of alleging fortkiture pursuant to the provision of Title 1 8, United

9 States Code, Section 98 1 (a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 I (c).

l0I l 2 Upon a conviction of the felony oftknses charged in Count Six of this Indictment
,

l 1 11 STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

12 M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,
CH RISTINA R. THO M PSON,

13:: AM Y R. ORTIZ, and!
JYOTHI PANIKKAR,

1 4

1 5 : defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of-America, any property constituting, or derived

' ' from
, proceeds traceable to a violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Section l 344 or a conspiracyl 6 .I

1 7 to commit such an offense up to $520,000.00 in United States Currency.

1 8 3. If any property being subject to forfkiture pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code,

l 9 Section 98 I (a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 1 (c), as a restllt of any act or

20I omission of the defendants -
l
! t be located upon the exercise of due diligence'

,2 1 I a. canno
il ! 

b has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;22.. .

23 . c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
I I24 
. d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;
; !

25 e. has been comm ingled with other property that cannot be divided without
:

26 difficulty;

i ;
i! 27
I I
I ;
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1 it is the intent of the United States of America to seek tbrfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

2 to $526,000.00 in United States Currency.

3 AlI pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 98 1(a)( l )(C) and Title 28, United States

4 Code, Section 2461(c); Title 18, United States Code, Section 1344., and Title 2 1 , United States Code,

5 Section 853(p),

6 FORFEITURE ALLEG ATION TW ELVE
Bank Fraud

7

8 1 . The allegations of Count Six of this Indictment are hereby realleged and incorporated

9; . herein by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title l 8, United
i

10 ' States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A).

l l 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offbnses charged in Count Six of this Indictment,

l2. STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

13 M EIJSSA R. BEECROFX
I CHRISTINA R. THO M PSON,

14 AM Y R. O RTIZ, and
JYO TH I PANIKKAR,

15

l6I i defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived

1 7 from, proceeds obtained directly or indirectly, as the result of a violation of Title l 8, United States

l 8 Code, Section 1344 up to $520,000.00 in United States Currency.
I Il 9 3. If any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code,

20f' Section 982(a)(2)(A), as a result of any act or omission of the defendants -

2 1 I i a cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence',

22 b. has been transfenrd or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

23i c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;

24 d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

25 e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided withoutl 1
! .

26' difticulty;' 
,1
q

28
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l it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

2 to $520,000.00 in United States Currency.

3 AII pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A) and 982(b),. Title 1 8.

4 United States Code, Section 1 344., and Title 2 l , United States Code, Section 853(p).

5 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION TH IRTEEN
Bank Fraud

6

7. 1 . The allegations of Count Seven of this lndictm ent are hereby realleged and
:

8 incorporated herein by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title

9 18, United States Code, Section 98l(a)(l)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246I(c).

102: 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Count Seven of this Indictment,

1 1 STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

12 M ELISSA R. BEECROFX
CHRISTINA R. THO M PSON,

13 AM Y R. ORTIZ, and
JYOTHI PANIKK AR.

l 4 I .

1 51 ' defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived

1 6 from , proceeds traceable to a violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section l 344 or a conspiracy

1 7. . to commit such an offense up to $295,000.00 in United States Currency.
j !

1 8 . 3. lf any property being subject to forfkittlre pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,
: !

1 9! Section 98 1(a)(1)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461 (c), as a result of any act or

20! ' om ission of the defendants -
l

2 1 . a. cannot be Iocated upon the exercise of due diligence;
!

22 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

23 c, has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;

24: : d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;
I .

25 e. has been comm ingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26 difticulty;

!; 29

; I
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1 :
l '' it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

2'' to $295,000.00 in United States Currency.
I:

3 ! A1I pursuantto Title 18, United States Code, Section 981(a)(1)(C) and Title 28, United States
! ;
i . i 1344. and Title 21 , United States Code,4! code, Section 246l(c), Title l 8, United States Code, Sect on ,
I !
51 ' Section 853(p).

6 FORFEITURE ALLEGATIO N FO URTEEN
Bank Fraud:

7 E

I !8. ' I . The allegations of Count Seven of this lndictm ent are hereby realleged and
. :

9 incorporated herein by reference for the purpose ot alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title

l0E ' l 8, United States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A).

1 l 2. Upon a conviction of the felony oftknses charged in Count Seven of this lndictment,

l 2 .1 STEVEN W . GRIMM,! 
REI-ZI-ZA,. EvE E. M AZZA

131. MELISSA R. BEECROFT,I' CHRISTINA R. THO M PSON,
14' AM Y R. ORTIZ, and

JYOTHI PANIKKAR,
15

1 6 defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived

i ! from
, proceeds obtained directly or indirectly, as the result of a violation of Title 1 8, United StatesI 7 . ,

l 82 Code, Section 1344 up to $295,000.00 in United States Currency.

19 3. lf any propefty being subject to tbrfeiture pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code,I !

20Ii section 982(a)(2)(A), as a result of any act or omission of the defendants -
i I

2 l a. cannot be located upon the excrcise of due diligence;

22I ! b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
: ;

23' '
. c, has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
! 124I d

. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

25 e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26 difticulty;

I 30

; !
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I

i

l it is the intent of the United States of Am erica to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

2 to $295,000.00 in United States Currency.
' i31 AlI pursuant to Title 1 8

, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(2)(A) and 982(b); Title 1 8,i
I

4i united states code
, section 1344., and Title 2l, United states code, section 853(p).

5 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION FIFTEEN
Bank Fraud

6

7 l . The allegations of Count Eight of this lndictment are hereby realleged and

8. incorporated herein by reference forthe purpose of allcging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Titlc

9 1 8. United States Code, Section 98 1 (a)(1)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 1 (c).

10 2. Upon a conviction of the felony off-enses charged in Count Eight ofthis Indictnlent,

1 1 STEVEN W . GRIM M ,
EvE E. M AZZARELLA,

12 M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,I '
.' CHRISTINA R. THOM PSON,

1311 AM Y R. ORTIZ, and
JYO TH I PANIKKAR,

1 4

11 h 11 forfeit to the United States ofAmerica, any property constituting, or derivedI 51 defendants herein, s a
!i 
i from , proceeds traceable to a violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1344 or a conspiracyl 6 !

17 to commit such an offense up to $590,000.00 in United States Currency.

18 3. lf any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,

1 9 Section 98 1(a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States Code. Section 246 l (c), as a result of any act or

201 I omission of the defendants -

2 l a, cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence',

22 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

23 c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court',

24 d, has been substantially diminished in value, or;
:

25! e. has been comm ingled with other property that cannot be divided without
I I

26' difticulty;

E :
i 31I 
.

i !I
I I
I

j '
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I '
1 it is the intent of the United States of America to seck forfeiture of any properties of thc defendants up

2 to 5590,000.00 in United States Currency.

3 AIl pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 98 1(a)( l )(C) and Title 28, United States

4 Code, Section 246 1(c); Title l 8, United States Code, Section 1 344; and Titlc 2 1 , United States Code,

51.
. Section 853(p).

6 FO RFEITURE ALLEGATION SIXTEEN
Bank Fraud

7 '

8. ' l . The allegations of Count Eight of this Indictment are hereby realleged and

9: incom orated herein by reference forthe purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title
:

10 I 8, United States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A).

l I 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenscs charged in Count Eight ofthis Indictment,

12 STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

13 M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,
CHRISTINA R. THO M PSON,

14 AM Y R. O RTIZ, and
JYOTH I PANIKKAR,

1 5
i !
!! defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States ofAlnerica, any property constituting, or derivedl 6 :
l

!
I 7 . from, proceeds obtained directly or indirectly, as the rcsult of a violation of Title l 8, United States

l 81 1 Code, Section 1344 up to $590,000.00 in United States Currency.: 
:

19 : 3. If any property being subject to tbrfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,

20 Section 982(a)(2)(A), as a result of any act or omission of the defendants -

2 1 ' a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

22; b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
! :23
: c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court',

24 d. has been substantially diminished in value, or',

25' ' e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26. difficulty;
I

I i
11 32
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I .

1 it is the intent of the United States of Am erica to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

2 to $590,000,00 in United States Currency.

3. AIl pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(2)(A) and 982(b),' Title I 8,

4 United States Code, Section 1344', and Title 2 1 , United States Code, Section 853(p).

5 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION SEVENTEEN
Bank Fraud

6

7 1 . The allegations of Count Nine of this Indictment are hereby realleged and incorporated

8 herein by reference for the purpose of alleging forfkiture pursuant to the provision of Title 1 8, United

9i1 States Code, Section 98 l(a)(1)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(c).
' ;

10 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Count Nine of this Indictment,

1 1 : STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

12 M ELISSA R. BEECRO FT,
, CHRISTINA R. THO M PSO N,

13: AM Y R. O RTIZ, and
JYOTH I PANIKKAR,

14

1 5 defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived

16 from , proceeds traceable to a violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Section l 344 or a conspiracy

1 7. to commit such an offense up to $485,000.00 in United States Currency.

l 8 3. lf any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title I 8, United States Code,

1 9 Section 98 1 (a)( l)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 1 (c), as a result of any act or

20 I om ission of the defendants -
: '

21 il a. cannot be located upon the cxcrcise of- due diligence;
:
I i

22 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

23 c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court',
2 .24 d. has been substantially diminished in value, or,

25 e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26 difticulty;

i
! I 33
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! lI 
j .1 : 
. it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of thc defendants up
;1

2! 1 to $485,000.00 in United States Currency.

3 AIl pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 98 1 (a)( l )(C) and Title 28, United States
I i4
. Code, Section 2461 (c); Title l 8, United States Code, Section 1344., and Title 2 l , United States Code,

5 Section 853(p).

16jj FORFEITURE ALLEGATION EIGHTEEN
11 Bank Fraud
7:

8 1 . The allegations ofcountNine ofthis Indictmentare hereby realleged and incorporated

9' ' herein by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title 1 8, United
:
:

'

l0; States Code
, Section 982(a)(2)(A).I .

I 1 '
.: 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Count Nine of this Indictment.

2I2: STEVEN W . GRIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZA RELLA,

I3! M ELISSA R. BEECROFX
:' CHRISTINA R. THOM PSO N,I

14 AM Y R. O RTIZ, and
JYO TH I PANIKKAR,

1 5 ' .
E

I 61 ' defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States ot America, any property constituting, or derived

i! t-rom
, proceeds obtained directly or indirectly, as the result ot- a violation ot- 'ritle l 8, United states1 7 .

1 8! ; Code, Section 1344 up to $485,000.00 in United States Currency.
j .1

1 91 ' 3. If any property being subject to fbrfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code.
! ! i 982(a)(2)(A)

, as a result of any act or omission of the defendants -201 Sect on

2 1 ' '' a
. cannot be Iocated upon the exercise of due diligence;

22 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
: 

.1 1 c has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;23: .

l :

24 d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

25' e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without

I 126
. difticulty;

34
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; l
l it is the intent of the United States of America to seck forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

I i
2Sl to $485,000.00 in United States Currency.

3 A1I pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(2)(A) and 982(b)', Title 1 8,

4 United States Code, Section 1 344,. and Title 2 l , United States Code, Section 853(p).

5 FORFEITURE ALLEGATIO N NINETEEN
Bank Fraud

6

7 1 . The allegations of Count Ten ofthis Indictm ent are hereby realleged and incorporated

8 herein by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeittlre pursuant to the provision of Title 1 8, United

9 States Code, Section 98 1 (a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 1 (c).

10 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offcnses charged in Count Ten of this Indictment,

I I STEVEN W . GRIMV
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

12 M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,
CHRISTINA R. THOMPSON

13 AM Y R. ORTIZ, and
JYOTHI PANIK KAR,

14

I 5. ' defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States ofAmerica, any property constituting, or derived

1 6 from, proceeds traceable to a violation of Title l 8, United States Code, Section 1 344 or a conspiracy

17 to commit such an offense up to $368,500.00 in United States Currency.

1 8. 3. lf any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,
I '

1 91 '' Section 98 1 (a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246l(c), as a result of any act or
i .

20j omission of the defendants -l
l l2 1 ' : a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligenee;

22 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

I ' .23 I c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court,

24 d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

25' e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26 difficulty',

! :
i

35
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1 ' it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties ot the defendants up
. :

i E to $368 500
.00 in United States Currency.2 ,

: ;

'

3' ' A11 pursuant to Title I 8, United States Code, Section 98 1(a)( I )(C) and Title 28, United States

4 Code, Section 2461(c); Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1 344,. and Title 2 1 , United States Code,

5 Section 853(p).

6 FO RFEITURE ALLEGATION TW ENTY
Bank Fraud

7.
:

8 l . The allegations of Count Ten of this Indictment arc hereby realleged and incorporated

9 herein by reference for the purpose of alleging forf-eiture pursuant to the provision ofTitle l 8, United

10 States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A).
: !

1 l 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offcnses charged in Count Ten of this Indictment,

t s'rEvEx w
. GRIM M ,1 2 i .

EVE E. M AZZARELLA,
13 M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,

CHRISTINA R. THOM PSO N,
14 AM Y R. O RTIZS and

JYOTHI PANIKKAR,
15

I
I 6. i defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of-America, any property constitutings or derived

1 7 from, proceeds obtained directly or indirectly, as the result of a violation of Title 1 8, United States

1 8 Code, Section 1 344 up to $368,500.00 in United States Currency.

1 9 3. If any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,

20i ' Section 982(a)(2)(A), as a result of any act or omission of the defendants -
I !2 1 
' a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence',
! .

22 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

23 c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;

24 d. has been substantially dim inished in value, or;

25 e. has been com mingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26 difticulty;

I '

i 36
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!

I ' . it is the intent of the United States of Am erica to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

2 to $368,500.00 in United States Currency.

3 All pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code. Sections 982(a)(2)(A) and 982(b)', Title 1 8,i 
.

4. United States Code, Section 1344; and Title 2 1, United States Code, Section 853(p).

5 FO RFEITURE ALLEG ATION TW ENTY-O NE
Bank Fraud

6

7 1 . The allegations of Count Eleven of this lndictment are hereby realleged and

8 . incorporated herein by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title

9 l 8, United States Code, Section 98 l (a)(1)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 1(c).

10 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Count Eleven of this Indictment,

I 1 . STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

12 M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,
CHRISTINA R. THOM PSON,

13 AM Y R. ORTIZ, and
JYO THI PANIK KAR,

l4:

l 5. . defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived!

I 6 from, proceeds traceable to a violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1 344 or a conspiracy

1 7 to commit such an offense up to $589,000.00 in United States Currency.

1 8 . 3. If any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code,i 
!'
' S tion 98 1(a)( 1)(C) and Title 28 United States Code Section 246 1(c) as a result of any act orl 9 ec , , ,

20 om ission of the defendants -

2 1 a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

22 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

23 c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
j ',

24: ' d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;g 
I

l i has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without25
I e.

26 '. ' difficulty',

37i I
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1 it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

2. to $589,000,00 ïn United States Currency.

1 '3'E All pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code, Section 98 l (a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States
; !
4. Code, Section 2461 (c); Title 18, United States Code, Section l 344,. and Title 2 1, United States Code,

5 Seetion 853(p).

6 FO RFEITURE ALLEGATION TW ENTY-TW O
Bank Fraud

7

8 l . The allegations of Count Eleven of this Indictment are hereby realleged and

9. : incorporated herein by reference forthe pumose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title

10: l8, United States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A).

I I 2. Upon a conviction ofthe felony offenses charged in Count Eleven ofthis Indictm ent,

12 STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA.

13 M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,
, CHRISTINA R. TH OM PSON,

14l . AM Y R. ORTIZ, and
; JYOTHI PANIKKAR,i

15;
1 6! defendants herein

, 
shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived

17: from, proceeds obtained directly or indirectly, as the result of a violation of Title 1 8, United Statcs

l II 8 Code
, Section I 344 up to $589,000.00 in United States Currency.

19; . 3. lf any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,
! ; . .

20' ' Section 982(a)(2)(A), as a result of any act or omission of the defendants -

2 1 ' a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligenee',

22 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

23' c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;

24 d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

25' ' e. has been com mingled with other property that cannot be divided without
I 1
l (jijuoujty;26 . .

!

38

; ;
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I I

1 it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up
! '
2. . to $589,000.00 in United States Currency.i

31 All pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(2)(A) and 982(b)', Title 1 8,

4. United States Code, Section 1 344', and Title 21 , United States Code, Section 853(p).

5! FORFEITURE ALLEGATION TW ENTY-THREE
Bank Fraud

6 .

7 l . The allegations of Count Twelve of this lndictment are hereby realleged and

8 incorporated herein by reference forthe purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision ofl-itle

9: I 8, United States Code, Section 98 1(a)(l)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 1(c).

1 0. . 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Count Twelve of this Indictment,

l 1 ; STEVEN W . GRIM M ,
! EVE E. MAZZARELLA,

I2: M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,
! CHRISTINA R. THO M PSON,

13'il AMY R. ORTIZ, and
: YOTH I PANIK KAR,! J

14

15 defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived

16..: f-rom, proceeds traceable to a violation ot- Title l 8, United States Code, Section 1344 or a censpiracy

1 7: . to commit such an offense up to $430,000.00 in United States Currency.

1 8. 3. If any property being subject to forleiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,
! ;
l I1 9. Section 98 l(a)( l)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 1(c), as a result of- any act or

20: omission of the defendants -

2 1 ! i a. cannot be Iocated upon the exercise of due diligence;
i !

22I i b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
! .
I I

23 c. has been place beyond thejurisdiction of the court;

24 d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

25I , e. has been commingled with othcr property that cannot be divided without

26 ' difiiculty',

I

j ! 39
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I i

l it is the intent of the United States of America to seek tbrfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

2 to $430,000.00 in United States Currency.

3 A1I pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 981 (a)( I )(C) and Title 28, United States
! !E 
code section 246l(c),. Title l8, united states code, section 1344; and Title 2l, united states code,4 I i ,

57 . Section 853(p).
I I
6 FORFEITURE ALLEGATIO N TW ENTY-FO UR

Bank Fratld
I
7 '

8I! I 
. The allegations of Count Twelve of this lndictment are hereby realleged and

91 incom orated herein byreference forthepurpose of alleging fbrfeiture pursuant to the provision of-ritle

10 l 8, United States code, section 982(a)(2)(A).

I 1 '' 2. Upon aconviction ofthe felonyoffenses charged in CountTwelve of this lndictment,

l2, STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
' EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

13 M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,
CHRISTINA R. THOM PSON,

14 AM Y R. O RTIZ, and
! Jvo'j'jfl PANIKK AR,l 
I1 5 . .

I 6 ' defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States ot Am erica, any property constituting, or derived

1 7 from, proceeds obtained directly or indirectly, as the result of a violation of Title I 8, United States

18 Code, Section 1 344 up to $430,000.00 in United Statcs Currency.

19' 3. If any property being subject to forfciture pursuant to Title 18. United States Code,

20: Section 982(a)(2)(A), as a result of any act or om ission of the defendants -

2 l a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence',

22 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

23 c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court',

24 d. has been substantially dim inished in value, or;

25 e. has been com mingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26' ' difficulty;

! I
!, 4o
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1 it is the intent of the United States of America to seek fbrfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

2 to $430,000.00 in United States Currency.

3 AIl pursuant to Title 1 8. United States Code, Scctions 982(a)(2)(A) and 982(b); Title I 8,

4 United States Code, Section l 344., and Title 2 1 , United States Code, Section 853(p).

5 FO RFEITURE ALLEGATIO N TW ENTY-FIVE
.; Bank Fraud
6'

7 1 . The allegations of Count Thirteen of- this Indictment are hereby realleged and

8 incorporated herein by reference forthe purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title

9 1 8, Unfted States Code, Section 98 1(a)(1)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 l(c).

10i ' 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Count Thirteen of this lndictment,

j .1l 1 
i STEVEN W . G RIM M ,

EVE E. M AZZARELLA,
12 M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,

CHRISTINA R. THOM PSOY
13 AM Y R. O RTIZ, and

JYOTH I PANIKKAR,
1 4

1 5j 'j defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived
I :

16 fi-om , proceeds traceable to a violation of Title 18, Unitcd States Code, Section 1 344 or a conspiracy

1 7 to commit such an oftknse up to $880,000.00 in United States Currency.

1 8 3. lf any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,

l 9.' Section 98 1(a)(1 )(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 l (c), as a result of any act or

20 omission of the defendants -I 
.

2 l a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

22 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
i

23.1.. c. has been place beyorld thejurisdiction t)f the court;

24! d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

25 e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26 difticulty;

4 1
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1 l it is the intent of the United States of Am erica to seek tbrfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

2 td $880,000.00 in United States Currency.

3 ' A1I pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code, Section 98 1 (a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States

4 Code, Section 246 1(c); Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1344; and Title 2 1 , United States Code,

5 Section 853(p).

6 FO RFEITURE ALLEGATIO N TW ENTY-SIX
Bank Fraud

7

8 1 . The allegations of Count Thirteen of this lndictment are hereby realleged and

9 incorporated herein by reference forthe purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title

10 l 8, United States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A).

1 1 2. Upon a conviction ofthe felony oftknscs charged in Count Thirteen ofthis lndictment,

I 2 STEVEN W . G RIM M ,i
: Rym j.xE EVE E. M AZZA ,

13 M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,
CHRISTINA R. THO M PSON,

14 AM Y R. O RTIZ, and
JYOTHI PANIK KAR,

1 5

16 defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United Statcs of-America, any property constituting, or derived

1 7 from, proceeds obtained directly or indirectly, as thc result of a violation of Title 1 8. United States

1 8; Code, Section 1344 up to $880,000.00 in United States Currency.
i !

I 
.1l 9. 3. lt- any property befng subject to forfeiture pulsuant to Title 18, United States Code,

20l ' Section 982(a)(2)(A), as a result of any act or omission of the defendants -

2 l a. cannot be Iocated upon the exercise of due diligence;
i

22I ' b has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party',i '
I !
;

23 : c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;

24j d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;
!

25 e. has been comm ingled with other property that cannot be divided without

2 6 ! : d i fti c u l ty ;

42
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I

l it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

2 to $880,000.00 in United States Currency.

3 A1I pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(2)(A) and 982(b),' Title l 8,
l !

4!. United states code
, section 1 344; and Title 2l, united states code, section 853(p).

5 FO RFEITURE ALLEGATION TW ENTY-SEVEN
Bank Fraud

6

7 1 . The allegations of Count Fourteen of- this Indictment are hereby realleged and

8. ' incorporated herein by reference forthe purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of TitleI

9 l8, United States Code, Section 981(a)(l)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246l(c).

! fthis Indictmentl 0 2. Upon aconviction of the felonyoffenses charged in Count Fourteen o ,

l 1 STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

I 2k M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,
CH RISTINA R. THOM PSON,

1 3 AM Y R. ORTIZ, and
JYO THI PANIK KAR,

1 4

l 51 I defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of- America, any property constituting, or derived

1 6 from, proceeds traceable to a violation of Title l 8, United States Code. Section 1 344 or a conspiracy

1 7 to commit such an offense up to $599,000.00 in United States Currency.

1 8 3. lf any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,
! i

1 9 Section 98 l(a)( 1)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 1 (c), as a result of any act or
i i

20 om ission of the defendants -

2 I a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence',

22 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

I '23
: . c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
! I .24. : d. has been substantially dim inished in value, or,

25 e. has been com mingled with other property that cannot be divided without
:

26 difticulty;

43

l I1 I
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1 it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

21 . to $599,000.00 in United States Currency.

3. A1l pursuant to Title I 8, United States Code, Section 98 1(a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States

4. Code, Section 246l(c),. Title l 8, United States Code, Section 1344; and Title 2 l , United States Code,

5. . Section 853(p).
I :
6 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION TW ENTY-EIGHT

Bank Fraud
7

8 1 . The allegations of Count Fourteen of this lndictment are hereby realleged and

9. încorporated herein by reference forthe purpose ofalleging forfeïture pursuant to the provision of Title

10 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A).

1 l 2. Upon a conviction ofthe felenyoffenses charged in Count Fourteen ofthis lndictment,

12 STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

13 M ELISSA R. BEECROFT,
. CHRISTINA R. THO M PSON,

l4' ' AM Y R. O RTIZ, and
I ' JYOTHI PANIKKAR,

15
i I

1 6 defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property constituting, or derived

iI 7 from
, 
proceeds obtained directly or indirectly, as the result of a violation of Title l 8, United States

l 8 Code, Section 1344 up to $599,000,00 in United States Currency.
: i

1 9. 3. lf any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,

20 Section 982(a)(2)(A), as a result of any act or omission of the defendants -

2 l a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence'.

22 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

i ' .23I ' c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court,

! '24I ! d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;
I

25 e. has been com mingled with other property that cannot be divided without

26 difficulty;
k
: !

44

I I
!
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i i

I '1 
. it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

2 ! to $599
,000.00 in United States Currency.

3j ' AlI pursuant to Title I 8, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(2)(A) and 982(b); Title l 8.
i4
1 ' United States Code, Section 1 344; and Title 2 1 , United States Code, Section 853(p).

5 FORFEITURE ALLEGATIO N TW ENTY-NINE
: Conspiracy to Commit M oney Laundering1 
.6 .

7 l . The allegations of Count Fifteen of this lndictm ent are hereby realleged and

8 incom orated herein by reference forthe purpose of alleging forfeiturc pursuant to the provision of Title
l I1
; 18 united states code, section 98l(a)(1)(A) and Title 28, united states code, section 2461(c).9 : ,
:

' 

'

10 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Count Fifteen ofthis lndictment,
I

1 1 STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
' 

EVE E. M AZZARELLA,
12 M ELISSA R. BEECRO FT,

CHRISTINA R. THOM PSON,
13 AM Y R. O RTIZ, and

JYOTHI PANIKKAR,i !
l 4 .

15 defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States ofAmerica, any property, real orpersonal, involved

16: . in a transaction or attempted transaction in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section I 956(h),
;

1 7 conspiracy to comm it a violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1956, or any property

1 8 traceable to such property, up to $2,000,868.34 in United States Currency.

l9I : 3. If any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code,
I l20
' ' Section 98 1 (a)( l)(A) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 l (c), as a result of any act or

2 1 om ission ofthe defendants -

22; a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence',

23' b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

24 c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
I '

25i ' d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

26

I i
: l

;' 45
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I .

I '
1 '. e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without

:2 I l dim culty;

3 it is the intent of the United States of Am erica to seek lbrfeiture of any properties of the defendants up

4. . to $2,000,868.34 in United States Currency.
i1
. 11 ursuantto-ritle lg-united statescode, section 9g1(a)(l)(A)and-ritle28, united states5' A pI I

6. Code, Section 2461(c)', Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1956(h)', and Title 2 I , United States Code,

7 Section 853(p).

8j' FORFEITURE ALLEGATION THIRTY
' Conspiracy to Comm it M oney Launderingi l
9

! : 1 The allegations of Count Fifteen of this Indictment are hereby realleged and1 0 
.

1 1 l . incom orated herein by referencc for the purpose ofalleging fbrfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title
I I

1 2 l 8, United States Code, Section 98 l (a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 l (c).

13 2. Upon a conviction of the felony oftknses charged in Coullt Fitteen of this Indictment,

14 STEVEN W . G RIM M ,
EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

15 M ELISSA R. BEECRO FT,
' CHRISTINA R. THO M PSON,

16 AM Y R. O RTIZ, and
I JYOTH I PANIKKAR,

l 7 i E
j 
!

l 8. i defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States ofAmerica, any property constituting, or derived
!
I I

l 9 from, proceeds traceable to a conspiracy in violation of Title 1 8. United States Code, Section 1 956(h)s

20 to commit a violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1956 up to $2,000,868.34 in United

2 1 States Currency.

!i
l 3 It-any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code,22. .
E I

23: j Section 98 1 (a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States Codc, Section 246 I (c)s as a result of any act or
! 1

24I om ission of the defendants -

25 a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

26 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party,'

I 46
I
I I
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l c, has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;

21 ! d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;I '
1: has been com mingled with other property that cannot be divided without3 e

.

4 difficulty;

5: '' it is the intent of the United States of America to seek tbrfeiture of any properties of the def-endants up

6 to $2,000,868.34 in United States Currency.

7 A1I pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 98 1 (a)( 1 )(C) and Title 28, United States
i '8 i Code

, Section 246 I (c); Title 1 8, United States Code, Section l 956(h),' and Titlc 2 1 , United States Code,

9. Section 853(p).

10 FORFEITURE ALLEGATIO N THIRTY-ONE
' 
'
' Conspiracy to Commit M oney Laundering

11
i !

1 2 1 . The allegations of Count Fiftcen of this lndictm ent are hereby realleged and

1 31 ! incomorated herein by reference tbrthepurpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title

l4I ' 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(1) and Title 28, United States Codes, Section 246 l(c).
I !

l 5 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Count Fifteen of this Indictment,
: .

16Ii STEVEN W . GRIM M ,
Ii EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

17 ' M ELISSA R. BEECROFX
CHRISTINA R. THO M PSON,

18 AM Y R. O RTIZ, and
JYOTHI PANIKKAR,

1 9

20 defendants herein, shall forfeit to the United States ofAmerica, any property. real orpersonal, involved

2 l ' in violations of, Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1 956(h), conspiracy to commit a violation of

22 Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 1956, or any property traceable to such property, up to

23 $2,000,868.34 in United States Currency.

24 I 3. lf any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,

25 Section 982(a)( 1) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246l(c), as a result of any act or omission

26l I of the defendants 
-; .

i i
i i
1' 47i
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l a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;
!

2 b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
I
3 c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court',

4 ' d. has been substantially diminished in value, or;

51 e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without

6 difticulty;
I
7. it is the intent of the United States of America to seek fbrfeiture of any properties of the defendants up
I '
!
8 to $2,000,868.34 in Unitcd States Currency.

i 1 AlI pursuant to Title l 8
, United States Code, Section 982(a)( l ) and 982(b),. Title 28, United9

1 0 States Code, Section 246 l (c); Title 1 8, United States Code, Section I 956(h)', and Title 2 1 , United

I 1 : States Code, Section 853(p).
i12 
I FO RFEITURE ALLEG ATIO N THIRTY-TW O

Engaging in M onetary Transactions in Propcrty Derived From Specifi ed Unlawful Activity
13
I !

14 1 . The allegations of Count Sixteen of this Indictment are hereby realleged and

I 5 incorporated herein by reference forthe purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of Title

I 6i I 1 8, United States Code, Section 981(a)(1)(A) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246 I (c).

l 7 ' 2. Upon a conviction of the felony of-fknses charged in Count Sixteen of this Indictment,

l 8 EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

19 defendant herein, shall forfeit to the United States ofAmerica, any property, real orpersonal, involved

20 in a transaction or attempted transaction in violation ot Title l 8, United States Code, Section l 957. or

2 1 any property traceable to such property, up to $ 1 60,()00.00 in United States Currency.

22 3. If any property being subject to forfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,
: I

23j ' Section 98 1(a)( 1)(A) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461 (c), as a result of any act or

24 om ission of the defendant -

251 l a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence',
! I

26' ' b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
!
i;
I :
1. 48I i
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' p i ,

I i

1 c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court;

2 d. has been substantially dim inishcd in value, or',

3 e. has been com mingled with other property that cannot be divided without
; I
4. difficulty;

52 it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the dcfendant up

6 to $ 160,000.00 in United States Currency.

I I71 ' AIl pursuant to Title I 8, United States Code, Section 98 l (a)( 1 )(A); Title 28, United StatesI
I ;

'

8 ' Code, Section 246l(c)', Title l 8, United States Code, Section 1957; and Title 2 I , United States Code,
! !
9. Section 853(p).

. !

10 FORFEITURE ALLEGATIO N TH IRTY-TH REE
q Engaging in M onetary Transactions in Property Derived From Specitied Unlawful ActivityI

11

!E I The allegations of count sixteen of this Indictment are hereby realleged andl 2 
I . .

13 incom orated herein by reference for the purpose ofalleging forfeiture pursuant to the provision of-ritle
. :

I4' 1 8, United States Code, Section 982(a)(l) and Title 28, United Statcs Codes, Section 246 1 (c).
l

15 2. Upon a conviction of the felony offenses charged in Coullt Sixteen of this Indictment,
;

' 

I

16 EVE E. M AZZARELLA,

17 defendant herein, shall forfeit to the United States of America, any property, real or personal, involved

l 8 ' in violations of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1 957, or any property traceable to such property,

1 9' up to $160,000.00 in United States Currency.

20I ! 3. lf any property being subject to t-orfeiture pursuant to Title 1 8, United States Code,
! ë

21 ii section 982(a)(1) and Title 28, United states code, section 2461(c), as a result of any act or omission
I !
12 of the defendant -22
i l
I231: a

. cannot be Iocated upon the exercise of due diligence;
I ;

24I b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
i I

25! : c. has been place beyond the jurisdiction of the court',I 
-

26I d. has bcen substantially diminished in value, or;
i 1
1 I
Ii 49I 
l
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. . 
'

1 ;
1. i
!

l : e. has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without
I

2 difticulty;

31 I it is the intent of the United States of America to seek forfeiture of any properties of the defendant up
I !

4 to $ 160,000.00 in United States Currency.
I

5 I A1l pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code, Section 982(a)( I ) and 982(b); Title 28, Unitedi i
61 1 States Code

, Section 2461(c)', Title 18, United States Code, Section I 957., and Title 2 1 , United States

7 Code, Section 853(p).

i ! DATED: this 1 day of June 2008.8 I! 
.

9 A TRUE BILL:
I i

10 /S/
li FOREPERSON OF Tl4E GRAND JURY

11

! GREGORV h BRow slt1 2 .

United States Attorney
j I :3

Il 4 
1

.1 BR (JH15
i
Assistant United States Attorney

l 6 i i
i

1 7 '

1 8 ' '

19

20
i l

2 1 I .

22
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24!

25:1
I I
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